
Meeting Minutes SEQ CHAPTER \h \r 1
THE REGULAR MEETING of the PLANNING BOARD of the Town of Cortlandt was conducted at the Town Hall, 1 Heady St., Cortlandt Manor, NY on Tuesday, August 4th, 2009.  The meeting was called to order, and began with the Pledge of Allegiance.

Steven Kessler, Chairman presided and other members of the Board were in attendance as follows:




Loretta Taylor, Vice-Chairperson (absent)



John Bernard, Board Member (absent)



Thomas A. Bianchi, Board Member (absent)



Ivan Kline, Board Member




Susan Todd, Board Member 



Robert Foley, Board Member 


ALSO PRESENT:




Edward Vergano, Department of Technical Services 




John J. Klarl, Esq., Deputy Town Attorney




John Milmore, CAC



Chris Kehoe, Planning Department  

CHANGES TO THE AGENDA BY MAJORITY VOTE
Mr. Steven Kessler stated in terms of the agenda this evening we have one addition and that is Planning Board no. 12-94 concerning Bed Bath and Beyond’s application for signage changes.  They’re going to be taking over the Linens ’N’ Things site at the Cortlandt Town Center so we’ll add that as letter ‘e’ at the end of correspondence.  Also on the agenda this evening the application of Richard Heinzer which is under “Old Business” the applicant has asked that we remove that from the agenda this evening and bring it back at our September 1st meeting and we will do so.  Lastly, we had a request for some façade remodeling at the Kohl’s Department Store on Route 6, they’ve also asked us to remove that item from the agenda this evening and we will bring that back at a subsequent meeting.  


*



*



*




ADOPTION OF THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF JUNE 2, 2009
Mr. Steven Kessler asked can I please have a motion to approve the minutes from our meeting June the 2nd, seconded, on the question:
Mr. Robert Foley stated on the question I am submitting corrections.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated all in favor saying “aye.”
RESOLUTIONS 
PB 18-07    a.
Application of Ranjor Saini for Site Development Plan Approval and a Special Permit for a proposed 40 ft. by 22 ft. canopy, the relocation of the existing gas pumps and alterations to the existing convenience store known as the Food Stop Convenience Store/Gas Station located at 2225 Crompond Road (Route 202) as shown on a drawing entitled “Proposed Site Plan” prepared by John Lentini, R.A. latest revision dated May 20, 2009.

Ms. Susan Todd stated Mr. Chairman I make a motion that we adopt resolution no. 31-09 granting the request with the 11 conditions attached, seconded with all in favor saying “aye.”


*



*



*




PUBLIC HEARINGS (NEW)

PB 17-08    a.
Public Hearing: Application of Springvale Apartments company for Site Development Plan Approval for the construction of a parking area with 22 spots and associated drainage improvements located between buildings 14 & 16 at the Springvale Apartment Complex located on the northwest side of Spring Place, approximately 300 feet northwest of Springvale Road as shown on a 4 page set of drawings entitled “Site Development Plan for Springvale Apartments” prepared by Cronin Engineering, P.E., P.C. latest revision dated June 24, 2009 and on a 1 page planting plan prepared by David Ferris Miller dated June 24, 2009.
Mr. David Steimetz presented himself to the Board and stated representing Springvale this evening with me tonight is Tim Cronin from Cronin Engineering as well as Richard Merbaum one of the managing partners of Springvale Apartments and Tina Zerella from Springvale.  Mr. Chairman as you properly indicated tonight is a fairly discreet application for a modification of the Springvale Apartment parking situation.  The proposal is for 22 new parking spaces.  I know some of you have had a chance to get out and take a look at the site.  It is an existing situation with a serious need for the various tenants of Springvale.  A lot of thought and time has gone into this because there is a strong desire by a vast majority of the residents to begin to address as best as possible improving an existing condition.  The 22 spaces was not haphazardly located as Tim Cronin can indicate and my client has explained there’s not a lot of places to place additional parking and I know some of the members of the Board are concerned that it might not be ideal for certain residents and there’s no question that certain residents will experience some degree of impact.  We hear the comments of the Board made.  There were suggestions made at the work session about the possibility of a completely new alternative addressing expanding Spring Place and possibly building head-in parking as I understood Mr. Kline’s comments into an existing hillside.  Mr. Cronin is going to do his best he can to respond on the fly to the comments we heard this evening at the work session but I will tell you that in the brief time we’ve had to talk about it since your work session, we don’t believe that the net gain in terms of parking spaces would justify the disturbance, the expense and the effort to do the parking.  We still need to do the analysis but understand as Tim will explain there are a certain number of parallel parking spaces on Spring Place.  If we eliminate those spaces and then go head-in, yes we will get parking spaces on Spring Place but we will loose the parallel parking spaces we will be backing up traffic from those spaces into an existing travel lane which is a condition that exists elsewhere at Springvale.  What we tried to design was an area that would have safe and adequate parking and would alleviate an existing drainage problem.  What we’ve learned is that there’s a fair amount of expense that’s going to be put in to installing the drainage necessary for the parking area and to be honest in order to make that expense which is not a mandate or a requirement we need to get a legitimate benefit on the other end and to do this for a net gain of 5 or 10 spaces is simply not prudent and I just want to make sure everybody understands this is something that Springvale is doing to benefit its tenants.  They’re not required to do this.  They don’t have to do this. Mr. Merbaum would like to do this and provide as much of a bang for the buck as he possibly can.  I want to just note that we have submitted 26 different letters to the Board.  We also have petitions that we’ve secured with new signatures and one thing I can assure the Board, Springvale can certainly bring a host, dozens and dozens of folks before you who will attest to the fact that they need additional parking.  I think if anybody went out there it becomes self-evident, if you go out there during high parking demand.  There are a few trees that have to be removed that will be addressed.  I understand Ms. Todd’s comments.  I heard about the site walk about dealing with the landscaping.  I’ve discussed that with my clients.  They have absolutely no objection to taking a look at the landscaping plan with Mr. Cronin as well as with their landscape architect and seeing if there’s a more naturalistic or more natural way to achieve some of the buffering for the neighbors immediately adjacent to the parking area.  Ms. Todd if you’ve got specific suggestions of species, height, type it’s definitely something that I know my client asked me “does the Board have specific things that they’d like to see change?”  They’re not arborists, they’re not landscape architects but they’re happy to take that back.  I want to also mention, it is my understanding that Holly Haight from the Town Fire and Safety Coordinator did come out and meet with Fred Tresgallow from Springvale, was extremely pleased with what she saw and recommended that the project move forward.  She thought it would be an improvement to safety for emergency situations.  And I would also note that this is a project that Springvale would like to try to get in before the winter months so that the tenants get the benefit of having the parking at the earliest possible date.  Should this spill over, construction would be delayed and the tenants would not realize the benefit of this vast improvement until sometime in 2010.  Again, we’re happy to try to respond very briefly to what we heard from Mr. Kline tonight.  It’s a little difficult to do that with just have gotten the information but I appreciate the frank comments from member Kline and I’d ask you all to reconsider and allow this to move forward.
Mr. Steven Kessler asked how many letters did you receive from people in building 14 David?

Mr. David Steimetz responded I don’t believe we received any letters of support from anybody in building 14 and that shouldn’t surprise anyone because those folks are near where this parking area would be and many of them actually have adequate parking.  We are trying to address the needs of folks that may not have adequate parking and provide an equal opportunity for as many people as possible to safely park and preferably park off the street where possible.  I’m going to turn it over to Tim to try to respond briefly to the parking suggested alternative and I hope you will all consider moving forward with this so that we can install a meaningful benefit for the community.

Mr. Tim Cronin stated I just received word that, in fact, there are some supporting documents from residents of building 14 and that they can be provided for the next meeting. 

Mr. Ivan Kline stated probably the ones who front the other side because half of building 14 fronts on the other side.  I went through the list and didn’t see anybody whose unit fronts on this lawn as supporting this which as David said shouldn’t be a surprise because they clearly are going to be adversely impacted by it.

Mr. Robert Foley stated the one letter 14-E does that front on wall marker white?  14-E as in echo, that doesn’t front.

Mr. Tim Cronin stated what we can do is put together a sketch showing where the various units are where we do have some positive feedback.  In any event, the location we chose for the parking area was about the flattest on the property and as you know parking is something that the flatter it is the better it is and that’s why we selected that area.  In addition to the terrain working for us in this situation we also were able to incorporate some drainage improvements which would benefit not only this area directly, because it is an area that’s prone to ponding and the soil does remain wet there, but also if you look to the west of units 14 and 15 the drainage is running behind those units or to the west of those units down to Springvale Road and in doing so we’ll be able to intercept run-off whether it’s roof leaders or just overland flow into our new drainage system before it gets onto the adjacent property which I believe is Summit.  In looking at the area that Mr. Steimetz mentioned, the parking on Spring Place or travel way on Spring Place, right here this is pull in parking.  I am assuming because of that configuration that’s also pull in parking.  I don’t know if there’s parallel parking here.  But, if there is parallel parking and we want to make that pull in parking one of two things would happen or perhaps both.  We would extend our curb line to match this line here and you can see the terrain there is pretty steep.  You’d have a cut, you know pick a number 6, 8, 10 feet perhaps with a pretty significant retaining wall or in the alternative if we maintain this curb line and I don’t know what that would do for the geometry of Spring Place, we’d have to extend this curb line down into the area where we’re proposing our parking as it is so there would be a considerable amount of disturbance, earth movement required, just in looking at this area here and possibly here to move the parking out of this flat area.  Remember the flat area is a nice spot for parking spaces.  You put it on a hillside or have to move earth to put the parking in.  You start to create more problems with erosion and so on.  That’s certainly something we can look at and then there are other areas throughout where I don’t want to guess if this is pull in parking or parallel parking but parallel space maybe 25 feet by 10 and pull in space would be say 10’ x 20’ and as David pointed out the more pull in spaces you have and we do have them now, you are going to be required to back into Spring Place.  We feel as though what we have here is the best location.  It requires the least amount of disturbance as far as earth moving goes and with the landscape plan that we have, would certainly be able to do whatever the Town thought appropriate to try to reduce the impact on the residents in building 14.  
Ms. Susan Todd asked I have a question on the distance from the proposed parking lot to building 14 at it’s closest is it say 6 or 10 feet?

Mr. Tim Cronin responded we were out there and the white paint was there, I would guess 8 to 10.

Ms. Susan Todd asked is that normal?

Mr. Tim Cronin responded from the proposed space to the building.

Mr. Richard Merbaum stated I was looking at it today and it looked like somewhere between 12 and 20 feet [inaudible.]
Mr. Ivan Kline stated well it angles away so that’s it’s not a constant number.  At the closest, if you took the first spot, it’s pretty close to that building.

[inaudible]

Ms. Susan Todd stated that’s what I wanted to know.

Mr. Richard Merbaum presented himself to the Board and stated I’m the managing partner at Springvale.  As you must have seen on your walk through, one of the concerns we’ve always had is maintaining as pleasant or as beautiful a surround as we can.  Parking by definition is an imposition in a natural environment.  It’s something that has become a necessity rather than a luxury, unfortunately.  We have 207 apartments in the immediate area and only 119 spaces.  People park on the streets during the year and of course in the winter they are not legally permitted to do so and are a problem because of snow removal issues and if it weren’t for this, we wouldn’t do it.  And, of course, in trying to figure out how to deal with the parking, because we don’t have many areas, we have virtually no areas we can use for parking for tenants that we can build, we tried very hard to make the environment as pleasant and as attractive as we possibly can as well as meeting your concern which is that the tenants who live in building 14 still retain a significant area in front of their apartments where they can congregate and have green grass and everything else.  Basically, we feel we’ve done that and we certainly, as Tim has said, we want to make sure that any final plan meets whatever esthetics and – esthetics are only a partial issue, it’s a question of how it meets the needs of the tenants in their living surroundings and we feel we’ve done that.  We’re willing to hear certainly any input that other people have but we feel we’ve addressed that issue or want to address that issue.
Mr. Tim Cronin stated I would like to modify my answer before in the distance between the parking here and the building.  I would, without having a scale, that looks to be about 12 to 14 feet and I’m just using that based on that distance here and comparing it to this distance here.  If that’s 9, that’s clearly more and you could say 12 to 14.  So, I would guess it’s 12 to 14 feet.  Again, we can screen as this Board or the Town or its environmental consultant’s suggest as you see fit and also right in here as well.  There is some plantings proposed and certainly we can enhance that to whatever degree you’d like. 
Ms. Susan Todd stated I think when John and I were out at the site visit on Sunday, we were eager to see a little more native species used in the planting scheme and would suggest that you work with Rich DeSanza in our office who’s been coming up with some really nice, attractive plantings that are good for wildlife.  When we were out there I noticed the people sitting outside of their apartment and they were watching the birds and feeding the birds.  It would be a place for bird feeders and other ways of being more in touch with nature.

Mr. Tim Cronin responded we would look forward to work with Mr. DeSanza on that, putting together a plan that would enhance this area as much as possible. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated I went there last evening.  I was not on the Sunday morning site visit.  I had not talked to Ivan, I have not seen him until the meeting tonight and what he was saying was what I also was thinking.  Having looked at the situation, when you look beyond the site plan, although I did notice the closeness of the handicap spot there in the corner of the sidewalk in front – what I noticed was the gentleman and people sitting on their front porches or door stoops in that building 14 and I thought “wow, if the parking is going to be down there in that green area, it’s awful close.”  Then I thought I was in the wrong spot and I drove around in the back and realized no that’s where the parking is going to be.  So, my first concern was the impact on building 14 and particularly that first half of the building as you’re facing to the left of those residents.  Second, whether that’s also a safety impact to them with cars pulling in if there are no bollards or something to protect if there’s an overrun over the curb and the third thing would be the drainage, although I’m sure it’s in your plan Tim, on the new impervious surface of the parking area and because it does swale down would that impact that building 14 in any way?  I have reservations about it because of the closeness of part of that parking pad to part of the building.  If there is an alternative, I would hope there would be a better plan. I also understand the need for parking.  I’ve been there many times when people have guests it’s very problematic and you’ve got a problem.

Mr. Tim Cronin responded we can certainly explore other possibilities but if you just take a look here – if you look along the right-hand side, that terrain gets pretty severe.  Along the left-hand side we already have the pull in parking.  There may be some opportunities up in here, but I think there’s already existing parking up along building 16, but again we can explore that.  It looks like you’ve got some pull in parking here and possibly some other minor areas with some pull in and some parallel but this area here affords us the best way for us to correct the situation we have which is a lack of parking.  That’s the goal here and that’s what we’re hoping we can do.

Mr. Robert Foley asked can I ask: in the back of the building (I didn’t walk around) there is a blacktop drive behind 14 below the walkway.  I didn’t go in there but, is that flat or is the terrain so that you can’t do anything there?  Right in there?

Mr. Tim Cronin responded it goes up a pretty good size hill.   

Mr. Robert Foley asked where it accesses from…

Mr. Tim Cronin continued Springvale Road which would be right out here.

Mr. Robert Foley stated I see there isn’t any access at the north end.

Mr. Tim Cronin stated it comes off of Springvale Road.  There are actually people who park on Spring Place who are residents of building 14.  Tenants of building 15 are actually parking in this area here.  You can imagine carrying groceries and having to even make that walk through the walkway and up the walkway.  Not that it’s going to go away with the new parking but certainly, those types of things might be lessened.

Mr. Robert Foley asked so the blacktop drive, the circle and the piece that goes up north, I guess that’s northerly behind 14, that’s not a car blacktop drive?  A walkway blacktop drive?  And up through the back of 14, is that for cars?

Mr. Robert Foley stated I know it’s up on a hill.

Mr. Tim Cronin responded it could be for deliveries.  I don’t think it’s something people generally travel on. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated I saw cement sidewalks in there, but I didn’t really see that from when I went around Springvale Road down and around below it towards Summit.

Mr. David Steimetz stated if I can just amplify one thing that Tim said.  One of the reasons as Mr. Merbaum was just explaining that we located the parking where it is, is because we were trying to get it as close to several different buildings for the reasons Tim was indicating there are a number of people that have asked for parking as proximate to the buildings as they could.  I think Ms. Todd had noted that it was the handicap spot that was the closest to building 14, that was something that was discussed and thought through in terms as making it as proximate as possible and there are a number of folks, as Tim alluded, who would rather not have to park a distance away.  It would be great to have a spot but not to have to traverse as long a distance.  A number of different factors were weighted if the Board is so inclined, and I kind of gather that you are, for us to build back and you’re not going to close we’ll go back and take a look.  We’ll take a look at the suggestion.  But, as Tim and Mr. Merbaum indicated, they went through a bunch of these geometries before we formulated this.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated the recommendation will be to go back and meet with the staff and go through this.

Mr. David Steimetz responded that’s fine.  We’re happy to meet with staff.  We had not heard any suggestions to this nature prior to tonight where we would have explored it in advanced and we’re happy to meet with them and see if we can up with anything else.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated before we go too far field here this is a public hearing is there anyone that wishes to comment on this application?

Ms. Kathy Lewis presented herself to the Board and stated I live in building 14-O and I will be that far away from the parking.  I’ve been there for a long time because I live with my mother who is a double amputee so I’ve got a lot of time in there.  I’d like to die without having 22 cars under my nose, which is beside the point.  Am I allowed to approach you folks up there?
Mr. Steven Kessler asked what have you got?

Ms. Kathy Lewis stated if I say I’m fanatical about this, I am.  I have gone out several nights between 9:00 and 10:00 o’clock at night, Spring Place, Springvale Road, anywhere between 40 and 50 unused so-called assigned parking spaces, nobody’s in them.  I don’t know why.  Maybe they’re all on vacation someplace but that’s part of it.  They can’t plow the little driveway that goes down into our building now and get the snow out of the way adequately.  I have no idea where they’re going to put the snow that would come off the 22 cars that are there.

Mr. Robert Foley asked where’s the little driveway that you’re talking about?  In the back, or in the front?

Ms. Kathy Lewis responded it’s on this south end of 14.

Mr. Robert Foley asked in the parking area you mean?

Mr. Ivan Kline stated well there’s some spots there already.

Ms. Kathy Lewis stated I’m graciously grateful I am one of those spots that’s right there.  There’s a couple of us here that have those spots too but it’s a problem as it is right now getting rid of snow.  What you said about the trees, and the squirrels, and the birds, half of them have been cleaned out of there now, they’re gone so if you take the rest of them out to put this in, there will be no birds, trees to sit out and watch only the 22 cars.  They’re advertising themselves as garden apartments in a country setting that does not imply a 22 car parking lot.  There’s basically four apartments, starting with me O, P, Q and R down the line that would be sitting right in front of this thing.  The other two will be close on that side and I’m not sure the people upstairs have any clue as to what’s going on behind them.  They face on the other side.  We’re the people that were sitting out the other day when some of you folks came around.  Appreciating the possibility of yes, we need the parking.  There’s 12 to 13 spots on Spring Place that face in above that little bank you were all talking about if needs be we can see or tolerate, if you will, putting 12 right under it facing them.  They’re facing this way into the building, put them opposite down in the flat top through there and a couple more against the wall.  That would take 15 cars and there’s a few other places if somebody would just open their eyes and look we feel that they could tuck in the balance of the cars in a few other places.  I don’t know if somebody else out there wants to talk and I thank you for your time.
Mr. Steven Kessler asked anybody else wish to comment?

Mr. Bill Planck presented himself to the Board and stated I’m in 14-P, right in the middle of the building facing the parking lot.  I’m not opposed to additional parking.  I’m just opposed to the fact of looking out my door to 36 cars; 12 existing on the hill and 22 at the level.  When I moved in 2000 we used to have picnics in that area.  The management would have a picnic to raise money for the fire and ambulance corps and that stopped about four years ago.  There used to be 16 trees there, I think we’re down to six now and they’re going to take four of those away.  It leaves two trees left.  It just seems like 36 cars out – I can almost guarantee that any people that signed the petition or wrote a letter are not going to have 36 cars outside of their window.  When I look at it, in the last year, I know we’ve scattered at least 50 new spots throughout the development, that’s probably about 10% of the existing apartments and now we need another 22.  We do need spots, I sympathize with Tina, people cry to her all the time for parking spots.  I see empty spots.  I know single drivers that have two cars and this is within the last year.  I know two drivers that have three cars.  I’ve seen cars sit in spots for two and three months at a time and never moved.  They’re not used correctly the spots.  People are in there that shouldn’t be in their parking.  I could easily live with 12 spots along the right-hand side and four against the building and find six somewhere else in the development.  There’s plenty of places to put two spots or three spots in a corner here or there.  On the other side of building 14 there’s a road that goes right down between the buildings.  Three or four cars can be put right there on one spot and that would take care of the back of the people on the building to the left in the back of 14.  We talk about the water, and you’ve seen the picture, and that’s heavy rain.  There’s one fairly new cleaned out drain in the last three years which we used to have a lake there that size would be there two or three days.  They finally corrected it, God bless them, and it rains off within an hour between the green grass and the drainage.  If you put all that as black top, one more drain is just going to have the same problem, it’s not going to be enough for all of that water.  This time of the year it’s hard to say but you’ve got to think about snow.  Right now they come down the little road that’s five cars there to the bottom of the picture and all of the snow is at the end of that road and usually are the last to go.  Luckily, I’m retired now but if you put 22 cars in there I have no idea where all of that snow is going to go.  It’s going to be hard to get out of there on bad weather.  I know there are people in the development that work for a living.  I know I come home four nights a week from meetings at 11:00 and coming along by the Inn, a minimum of 15 spots empty, every night of the week.  I was told they park down at the Inn, well they’re parked illegally.  They’re parked in the wrong place.  There’s spots all over that can be used.  22 just seems like an awful lot of spots considering we put 50 in already.  Thank you.
Mr. Steven Kessler asked anybody else wish to comment at this time?  

Mr. Ivan Kline stated I just want to clarify.  I think what I said at the work session which Mr. Steimetz referred to, it was not suggesting that there be zero instead of the 22, it was more along the lines of what the last two speakers had suggested which is not having the spaces to the left side of what’s up on the screen now, or maybe just a few of the ones towards the top of it especially if they’re turned slightly, because then they will not be that close to 14 and they won’t shine lights on it.  Using the spots on the right side, because those really just will be in effect a lower part of the parking that’s already there and make up the difference.  The photo that the woman submitted, the top photo actually shows that across the street from the pull in parking that is there now, are the parallel spots and the slope is not that great.  I’m not an engineer, I can’t say how easy it would be but I’ve got to think that up and down there, the whole area that’s the parallel parking in there I would think you can add in five or six spaces by just turning them some even if you don’t turn them all the way. There’s plenty of width.  I understand you’re concerned about backing into the road but there’s already pull in parking up and down that road so it can’t be unless there’s a record of a huge number of accidents occurring it doesn’t seem like a big boulevard with a lot of traffic to worry about backing into the road.  I think you can get to the same number without having a negative impact on these units in 14.

Mr. David Steimetz asked your concerns, Mr. Kline, primarily are those bottom four or five spaces there?
Mr. Ivan Kline stated maybe the bottom six or seven would be a better way – so that you still would maintain a significant lawn area there that you could still have the screening and not have any car be that close.  I don’t know if it’s possible, but to try to save maybe one more of the large trees which seem to serve as nice shade trees in the morning, in the summer when the sun is to the east there.  Maybe it would require taking out one or two of the bottom right spaces as well.  I was trying to visualize that but couldn’t, I don’t have anything to work against those there. 

Mr. David Steimetz stated I think if Tim and I can meet with staff and I know Ed and I were trying to get a meeting together on another matter that he mentioned at one of the work session, so if we could try to have a staff meeting between now and your September meeting, I think we can come up with some alternatives and see if there are viable alternatives.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated will do.

Mr. Robert Foley stated Mr. Chairman I make a motion to adjourn, to keep the hearing open and adjourn it to September 1st meeting referring it back to staff for more alternatives, seconded with all in favor saying “aye.”


*



*



*

PUBLIC HEARINGS (ADJOURNED)

PB 7-09      a.
Public Hearing: Application of Congregation Yeshiva Ohr Hameir for Site Development Plan Approval , Wetland and Tree Removal permits and for a Special Permit pursuant to Section 307-50 of the Town of Cortlandt Zoning Code for a Seminary for the construction of a new on-site wastewater treatment plant and for the renovation/reconstruction of the existing Dodge City Building for classroom and dormitory space for property located at 141 Furnace Woods Road  as shown  on a 3 page set of drawings entitled “Site Plan prepared for Yeshiva Ohr Hameir” latest revision dated June 18, 2009 prepared by Ralph Mastromonaco, P.E. and a 2 page set of drawings entitled “Dormitory Renovation/Reconstruction” prepared by KG&D Architects, undated (with a presentation date of July 7, 2009.) 

Mr. David Steinmetz presented himself to the Board and stated representing the applicant.  We made a rather extensive presentation at the initial session of the public hearing last month.  I’m going to be very brief in our introduction and then sit back and listen to the comments that we received.  Just as general background, we are here tonight in connection with the public hearing on the application for an amended special permit, an amended site plan approval and a wetlands permit.  As the Chairman indicated, the application relates primarily to two facets: 1) sewage treatment plant that we are proposing on site and a reconstruction of the Dodge City building.  As we discussed last time the Yeshiva has agreed to a voluntary cap of 225 students and at the work session there were two issues that I want to cover just at the beginning: 1) was a discussion of the letter that we’ve submitted requesting the corporation by reference of the earlier application.  What we were requesting, as I think the Chairman noted, was simply to the extent that we know your Board has spent time processing the original application and has facts and information that you are predicating anything you do based upon that.  We thought it would be prudent in response to a question we got from the Chair at the last meeting that we request that we simply incorporate by reference the materials from the earlier application.  I agree with Mr. Klarl we don’t want to logistically require the Town to photocopy every document all over again, though we certainly could do that, but I think it would be useful if the Board had a document in this file that simply says “the Planning Board application from ’06 is incorporated by reference.”  So, anyone looking at this file is on notice that they certainly can visit the other file for other background information.
Mr. John Klarl stated that was the discussion at the work session.  We’re going to do an incorporation by reference on paper, but we’re not going to place anything physically from one file to the other and of course the incorporation by reference is as to relevant documents obviously if something’s not relevant for submission to the extent it’s relevant we’ll incorporate by reference but if there’s not going to be any physically any copying just a reference to the previous file.
Mr. David Steinmetz stated precisely.  The second point, and I think it’s an important issue, is the Board received a copy of a letter from the Westchester County Department of Health dated July 31st from an assistant commissioner indicating that the Westchester DOH has in fact issued a flow confirmation letter indicating that the 23,000 gallons per day is the acceptable figure based upon the DEC guidelines and regulations.  The Chair asked a question at the work session and I just wanted to address it on the record so that if there are any questions we iron them out; DOH is required to basically do a couple of things: 1) issue that flow confirmation letter and 2) as Ms. Doyle told us last time, to ultimately approve the physical construction of the treatment plant itself. The DEC, on the other hand, is required to actually review and then issue the SPDES permit setting the discharge limits.  That’s the division of responsibility between the two.  We have submitted information to the DEC.  The DEC cannot issue its draft discharge permit limits until this Board has completed the SEQRA process. That is why we had asked you to begin the public hearing process and we’re trying to address all of the issues before you in a timely fashion.  With that as my initial comments I think at this point it would be most prudent to allow the public to make their comments and then we can respond to any issues that are necessary at that time.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated just one other letter you might want to add to the record was your Ralph Mastromonaco’s letter of July 24th which responded to a number of the issues that came up at the last meeting in terms of water usage and the discharge limits in the existing septic system.

Mr. David Steinmetz responded we tried to correct one or two issues that had been pointed out by the Board mathematically or typographically from the original submission and we addressed the compliance with Westchester County Code as to how the existing septic system would be abandoned.  Thank you.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked public hearing, anybody wish to comment on this application?

Mr. Joel Benedict presented himself to the Board and stated Lakeview Avenue West.  My understanding is the Board is prepared to grant a special permit for 225 students maximum at this facility.
Mr. Steven Kessler stated we haven’t decided on anything yet.

Mr. Joel Benedict stated some issues with the numbers at the facility here.  We’re always referring to 225 students.  We’ve asked probably for three years now how many staff and facility is at their location.  Digging as much as we can trying to find out what the actual population is here.  We’ve now come across a piece of information that says there’s 195 registered voters at the address.  You have to be 18 to vote. They say there’s 128 students from K through 12, from 194 that’s there that leaves 66 post-secondary students.  By my calculation that leaves 129 staff, residents, or whatever is at the location.  We’re also looking to add a building that houses a minimum of 250 plus students.  Nothing is being taken away from what’s already there.  We’re looking now at a potential of 600 people at the location by my calculations, and if I’m wrong let me know.  That’s got to be the equivalent to 120 single-family homes with five member households.  There’s a density problem here and we need to get some answers.  I’m also concerned about the maintenance of the upkeep of this plant and what will happen if it’s not kept up the same way the present septic system was.  Overused, neglected that got us to this point.  Has any other existing facility in this Town been allowed to have a waste treatment plant other than new developments that we know of?  Will this set a precedent in the Town for every other institution, large development who allows their systems to get to this point?  Will they also be granted permits for similar plants?  What is the environmental impact upon these plants?  I also noticed that this plant will be putting its discharge into a stream which flows under a culvert, under Maple, back under Maple, under Galloway Lane, under Peter Beet Lane before it follows its travails down Furnace Brook, past the school out to the highway.  Why should there not be a full environmental impact study on what this will do to the roads, the culverts, the existing flood zones which is as far as I can tell is all on the other side of Maple Avenue, all the way around the stream, all the way through the schools down to Furnace Brook?  I think there are a lot of unanswered questions that we need to know before we allow any special permits at all.  And, we’ve been waiting for years for these answers and we haven’t gotten them yet.  Thank you.

Mr. Greg Gale presented himself to the Board and stated I live on Furnace Woods Road.  As Joel had just went through, I had some questions, and again we’ve been down this road for years and we have yet to get any answers.  Not any answers, many answers.  Again, I want to renew my call for an environmental impact statement.  There is just too much at stake.  There’s just too much out there and we’re sitting here and we’re saying “well, we’ve got the streams, we’ve got the schools, we’ve got the lakes.”  I think we need somebody to come in and do an environmental impact statement and tell us what we’re looking at.  Also, I think this plant is in a residential area.  Last month I made the suggestion that this plant be placed in a building with filters and fans.  Again, I renew that call.  The Town has a precedence of denying sewage treatment plants that drain into Rose Lake and I refer back to the Abbe Rose Development that was a very similar situation it was just on the other side of the lake.  There was a sewage treatment plant that was proposed and it would have drained into Rose Lake again, through the schools and I mentioned again as I did during the Abbe Rose hearing we can’t control goose poop, what’s going to happen when this thing doesn’t work.  The drains, again, go past two schools, they flood all the time.  The fields flood repeatedly, even if the thing is working correctly, we’re going to introduce 23,000 more gallons a day, let alone if it doesn’t work correctly.  As you know, I’ve been following the evolution of this process from its inception, I think it was 1985 and we unearthed the infamous letter and then as Mr. Kline so pointedly addressed last time that there is a 1994 decision made that grants special permits to facilities that didn’t have them, am I understanding that correctly?
Mr. John Klarl stated yes.  We talked about ZORP last time and ZORP came into being on January 21st of ’94 and it said if there’s a special permit used to define of the Code and you don’t have a special permit at that point, you’re deemed to have been granted one.

Mr. Greg Gale stated so in effect, you changed the law, the Town went and changed the law and deeming that the special permit is in effect from what I understand.  So, I guess my question is what assurances do we have that if this plant is granted a special permit that there’s going to be any enforcement at all because the Town evidently has not enforced anything from 1985, they just changed the law and then they haven’t enforced anything?  What assurances does the public have that this Town will enforce this special permit?  During last month’s meeting a $25,000 penalty was mentioned by one of the members of the Board.  I submit that that is not a material fine $25,000 is really not substantial if there’s anything that would cause this plant to malfunction.  The damages are potentially great; we’ve got two schools, there’s hundreds of kids that go to these schools, there’s hundreds of homes.  Our Lakeview Avenue Home Owner’s Association used the Rose Lake as recreation.  If there’s a discharge into the lake it’s going to affect our property values, it’s going to affect our enjoyment of life.  Who’s going to pay for that?  I’m not interested in hearing “well we’ve got a $25,000 bond.”  Sorry, it won’t cut it.  As Joel had mentioned, given the Yeshiva’s history of a failure to maintain their property, for whatever reasons, whether they had the funds or whether they didn’t, that’s really not material to my statement.  What assurances do we have that they will maintain it going forward after the renovation is made complete? Or reconstruction, or whatever term we want to use.  After this project is completed, what assurances do we have that the property is going to be maintained?  I know this special permit can be renewed at given intervals.  I would submit that it’s done on a yearly basis, at least for the first 10 to 15 years to make sure that this is properly maintained, especially the sewage treatment plant.  I questioned the last time how this plant is operated, evidently an operator is hired and he’s on site daily.  Again, I go back if the Yeshiva doesn’t have the funds to pay the operator, what happens?  Who pays for it?  It’s not going to be my taxes.  I’m curious to see how this happens, because nobody has addressed this yet and as Joel said that we’ve been asking these kinds of questions for years.  The reason why I think we’re in this position at this point is that we started in 1985 and the Town has let this matter progress and now we’re in a position where we’re actually rewarding, one could argue bad behavior, or one could argue that there is a need because of an evolving development.  Joel had mentioned the density issue that he talked and he talked about the vote of registration, I’d like to introduce this into public record if I may.  I don’t have it in front of me that was one of my few copies.  Once you guys take a look at that you’ll notice that there’s 194 registered voters at this location.  The last beds report from K through 12 I think it says 127 students.  The applicant’s attorney last meeting said there are 194 residents.  Somebody’s got to explain to me how this is coming about.  Additionally, if you look at that vote of registration list there are – let me back up, throughout the process of this the applicant has said that the majority of the students are K through 12 and that a small minority of folks stay on board to continue their education.  If you look at that list, you’ll notice that the age of the residents is substantially higher than I would have envisioned a secondary student.  There are seven on the list that are under the age of 21.  There are two that are listed twice, they’re listed as 20 year-olds.  There’s one guy on there that must have been hanging around a long time because it says on there that he’s 107.  I would submit that somebody has to take a look at this list and ascertain what’s going on.  Here again, we’re questioning the density and looking for a real tangible number that we can get our heads around, something that’s constant.  I would submit that as part of the special permit renewal application that an affidavit is supplied stating how many residents are there, how old the residents are so we can track this to make sure that the density doesn’t get out of hand as it has in the past.  That’s about it.  That’s all I have to say.  I really strongly think that we need to take a detailed look at this.  We need not rush through it.  I understand the applicant is in a hurry, but I also would implore upon the Board that a lot of the delay was their own making.  We need to take a very hard look at this. There’s too much at stake here and an environmental impact statement I think is, at the very least, the minimum amount of due diligence that needs to be performed.  Thank you.
Mr. Steve Rutolo presented himself to the Board and stated Lakeview Avenue.  I don’t know how we got to this point at this stage but I think I brought some of the truth here to take a look at and hopefully I can liven this up somewhat.  We can start to look at some of the actual results of this potential commercial venture.  Here we show how the tributary system works which runs through this entire neighborhood.  It affects the individual homes and school system throughout the area.  You can see that our recreational lake is right here and that this entire wetland…
Mr. Ed Vergano stated sir, just for clarity, point to where the Yeshiva is on that map.

Mr. Steve Rutolo stated the Yeshiva is right here.  It leeches down into this wetland area which creates this tributary system, it runs up through here across Maple Avenue, back across Maple Avenue, into these wetland areas, works its way all the way down through the entire neighborhood, comes down through the Peter Beet Lakeview Avenue area into the recreational lake system that runs all the way through past the dam down into our school system.  We tried to show here is the individual wetland areas, the tributary networks and the flood planes that this 23,000 gallons of additional water system can cause into this area, not to mention the waste treatment itself which is a serious potential problem. 
Mr. Steven Kessler asked can you explain the colors please?  I can’t read them out. 

Mr. Steve Rutolo responded the blue is the tributary system, the actual brook and water network that creates the wetland environment of this entire area.  The green is the wetlands themselves and the yellow is the flood plan.  What happens when we get additional discharge or rain or etc.  I brought some photographs so you can see here which clearly show, and this is nothing out of the ordinary that happens to this area all the time.  Serious review has to be done on this entire affair and I’m just getting started in looking into this.  I’m not feeling particularly well today but this is not something that can be rushed through and I think we have to take some serious time and seriously look at this issue.  At this time I’m going to just leave this for you to take a look at but I intend on being back with additional information.  
Mr. Robert Foley asked can you point out where Rose Lake is.  Is that the blue?

Mr. Steve Rutolo responded this is Rose Lake.  The entire network right here is all Rose Lake.  This is the school system, both the Middle School and Furnace Woods Elementary School.  And, from the photographs you can see the potential disasters you can have on your hands not to mention we’re literally not going to allow anyone to discharge sewage treatment into our recreational lake.  We were here long before this venture ever started and we have every intention of staying here. 

Mr. Robert Foley asked on the photos, just quickly could you point out what they are.

Mr. Steve Rutolo responded this is Ohr Hameir right here.  This is all flooded in the back which is what makes up this wetland area here.  This is the brook tributary right here, it crosses through Maple Avenue, this is as it comes across through this section right here and it starts to build up.  You see how it comes down through this neck and start to pick up momentum, now at this stage crossing right here and directly into the lake and that’s what’s feeding our lake.  All the neighbors within this entire area all get flooded out every time this rises up.  You can see this is where it enters the school system on the other side of the road from the dam it floods out the entire fields section.  It’s actually been into the school.  This is just regular rainfall so I’m not showing you anything we haven’t seen before.  This is our baseball field for the girl softball team.

Mr. Robert Foley asked you mean out at Blue Mountain?

Mr. Steve Rutolo responded at Blue Mountain Middle School.  This is the parking lot at Blue Mountain.  This house right here, or this section in here and in here is all throughout here.  This is the elementary school.  You can see this is the front of the elementary school.  This is our children’s playground.

Mr. Robert Foley asked these were recent photos?

Mr. Steve Rutolo responded yes, I would say these were from the last 18 months through 2 years.  So, we’ve got a severe environmental impact to this entire area, not to mention the devastation to our lake.  This is not something we’re really considering entertaining at this stage of the game.  This is a devastating blow to our entire community.  This right here is Lakeview Home Owner’s, just in here and it affects even well beyond that all the way down into here and this goes all the way down into this section and it goes all the way into the Hudson River.  So, I think you guys need to take a good hard look to what’s really going on here.  Because, typically this is what they don’t want you to see.  Thank you.
Mr. Phil Tumbarello presented himself to the Board and stated I live down on Fairview Court which is very close to the site that Mr. Vutollo was just describing.  I’m going to try to restrict my comments to the environmental issues.  At the outset I realize what is on the agenda.  The agenda speaks to the special permit, the approval of the site plan and the wetlands and tree removal permit.  I’m concerned that the applicant will be asking this Board to close the hearings after tonight and let the Board vote on the applicant seeking approval.  I would cast my opinion in favor of not closing the hearing or if the hearing is closed that this Board vote against the applications that are made.  Before I get to the environmental issues, one issue that does keep coming up, I’d be remissive if I didn’t mention it is the walking issue, the safety issue.  I’ve been at many meetings and other people have brought it up.  It was represented to us in this room either before this Board and before the Zoning Board that the applicant would take steps to alleviate the walking issue.  Since I live as close as I do to the facility, I’ve seen no signs of the abatement in the walking and just the other day there were four young men who were actually just laying down on my front lawn.  They were safe from traffic lying on my lawn but it was just not something I was expecting to see and I’ve seen no abatement.  I don’t want to be repetitive of what I or others have said but it occurred to me that at my presentation before the Zoning Board of Appeals would I address to that Board I think merits discussion now.  That discussion basically is I see a Board such as yours as I did with the Zoning Board of Appeals as being a body that must act both in law and in equity.  You have difficult decisions to make.  If someone comes before you seeking equity they should come before you at a bare minimum with clean hands.  I previously raised the subject in light of the investigation that other people and myself had done showing a large number of violations.  I understand many of those violations were addressed.  I don’t think it was because of anything I had to say, I do credit the addressing of the violations issue, the safety issues, the fire hazards, the wiring problems, the structural issues, the leaking issues, the mold issues, and many of the other issues that have been addressed previously as an effort by the applicant to present themselves as responsible for the safety of the students and also as a good citizen.  I do remain concerned with the overriding issue of what is going on there?  Who’s living there?  How many people are there at any given time?  In my attendance at these previous proceedings it seems to be the overlying question of numbers, purely numbers.  I understand a little bit about the special permitting process in Mr. Klarl was advising in response to a prior speakers but the only thing I see in relative to a permitted use of this property that goes back to the 1985, 1986 etc, where the Town said when the applicant said “we expect to have 60 students come up to our Yeshiva, we’re going to have 20 staff, 10 of whom will be residents, half of them will be residents.”  I divided 20 into 10 meaning that [at a ratio] the Town did give its approval for 10 people to live in this area.  It’s single family zoning residential area.  As I understand it from review of the application, we’re looking at approximately five buildable acres assuming a single family with a size of four to six people, or seven people, we would be talking about 20 to 35 people who in single family homes could comfortably, within the confines of our zoning construct, reside on those acres.  We now have before us an application for 225 full time resident primary age school students.  That’s many, many times more than I think the buildable acres could support regardless of what type of septic system was put in there.  But, in addition to that and going back to my theme that an applicant must come before this Board with clean hands, is very distressing to me what has been presented about there being 194 registered voters at this address.  I’ve given a very quick look at the list.  I believe 8 of those 194 are women, the other 186 are male.  None of the 194 are under the age of 20, most of them provide ages in their 20s and 30s although there are some that do get much older.  I for one would question, how do we have 194 registered voters at this one address which has been primarily been represented to us as a facility, a residential facility for primary school-aged children?  It’s a number that I believe the Town, the Board possibly on assignment to the Town Attorney, that’s not for me to decide, should look into.  Are there 194 registered voters living there?  I don’t know very much about election law, I always thought where you voted was where your principle residence is or your domicile was.  So, do we have 194 people with a personal residence or domicile at this facility?  I don’t know the answer to that but I think that’s an answer that this Board should ask before they move on.  I did say that I wouldn’t speak very long and I wouldn’t be repetitious if I stay up much longer, and I could go on, I may say what other people might have to say but at this juncture my simple prayer would be that this Board look into the vote and registration issue, look into seriously the number of students issue.  Previously, we’ve advised the Board that there were a large number of PELL grants and other State and Federal aide grants that we were able to look up online which would seem to indicate that there are an educational program above the primary school level.  There are so many open questions so I would simply decease the Board with respect to the three items that are before it tonight in relative to this applicant that they certainly not close the hearing or if they do decide to close hearing that they vote against the application being made and I thank you all for your time. 
Ms. Laura Trussler presented herself to the Board and stated Hillview Court.  I’m here primarily, I wasn’t at the last two meetings.  I was out of the country did watch them on TV and I heard the Yeshiva’s attorney state that one of the reasons the sewage treatment plant was in order was because both Furnace Woods School and Blue Mountain Middle School had a sewage treatment system.  I spoke with the custodians extensively at both schools.  Both schools are on a regular septic system similar to our homes just larger in scale to accommodate the children.  There are pit overflows for the excess water.  The custodians have to go out on a daily basis and measure the amount of liquid in the tanks.  Then they perform a pH test similar to a swimming pool.  Depending on the result they add a chemical.  The only chemical that may be added is chlorine.  It’s then logged and an inspector from the State Board comes once a week to read the logs.  It’s not a sewage treatment plant in either school.  It’s a simple septic system.  Also, to note, these schools serve one meal a day, not three.  Nobody showers there.  Nobody sleeps there.  They’re in school 16 to 18 days a month, many days less, it’s not 24/7 all year long.  With that said, you’ve heard how the water goes the same way past all these homes, they flood.  I don’t care what your experts, what your maps, these are the photographs we flood.  There’s no way around it.  The wildlife in there could be affected.  Blue herons, egrets, otters, definitely protected water fowl.  I don’t think otters are protected yet but if development keeps going you never know.  Lastly, we’ve been here with Abbe Rose several years before.  Same water path.  The creek at the Middle school and Furnace Woods School is used extensively in the science programs in both schools.  Kindergarten, third grade, they go out to the creek.  They take living samples.  Seventh grade they do the living environment study for two years.  They are out in the lake conducting experiments, taking water samples.  Rose Lake is tested.  We care about our lake.  It is tested annually.  We know the colliform count.  We know everything going on in our lake.  Our pH is akin to a swimming pool.  The quality of the water is almost drinkable.  We’ll know if something changes in it and I ask you to please vote against this and again, like Mr. Tumbarello said please keep these hearings open.  There are people who are very concerned about this.  I just haven’t been able to make the past two meetings.  Thank you.
Mr. Nelson Trussler presented himself to the Board and stated I’m at 1 Hillview Court and I’d like to present to you guys some problems that could happen to the eco-system if this sewage treatment plant went through.  First off, you have three types of plant nutrients that make plants grow, you have phosphorous, nitrogen, and potassium and phosphorous is one of the main nutrients that is essential for plant growth and is also a product of sewage treatment discharge and if this plant was to go through this amount of phosphorous from the discharge would be dumped into the lake and you have all sorts of aquatic plants in the lake and with this excess amount of phosphorous they would start to grow rapidly out of control until you basically have an under water jungle.  This also contributes to a process called nitrification which occurs when plants that are growing at an extreme rapid rate and the amount of dissolved oxygen in the water there’s not enough of it to sustain the eco-system so you’ll have the plants and all the other aquatic living organisms competing for the oxygen and the plants will win because there are so many of them and that will kill all the living animal wild life that lives in the lake.  This obviously will affect the eco-system big time.  This also contributes to infectious agents which are also another example of water pollution.  Because, obviously in sewage you have bacteria, you have microbes and they carry diseases on them and if these diseases and pathogens got into the lake the water would be unclean, there would be disease, and once again you would have more animals dying.  Another point I would like to bring up is if this sewage wasn’t treated properly it would cause the water to smell bad and it would obviously disrupt the harmony of the eco-system with all the animals.  When you take a number one in the bathroom, you release excess amounts of potassium which is also another nutrient used for growing plants and such and this potassium could obviously alter the pH of the soil making it more acidic or base and this would also affect the eco-system and could kill plants, it could kill animals.  Another thing I’d like to point out is in this area we have heavy rains, for example back in 2004 we had hurricane Ivan and it rained so much me and my friend went to the Middle School in the upper parking lot, we took a raft and we went all the way from the upper parking lot to the tree line of Furnace Woods school and back.  The playground was nearly under water.  In 2007 we had so much rain that I was in the Middle School at the time and the Middle School was closed due to the amount of rain.  I took a raft out again and it was almost two feet deep.  This area floods.  After heavy rains, you have a lot of runoff from mountains and hills and streets, and to counteract this the Town tried to build storm drains and these storm drains flow into the sewage system that’s in the area and after heavy rains there’s so much runoff coming in from the hills and the mountains and the roads that the sewage treatment plant can’t handle this and it will begin to flood and some of this runoff will carry raw sewage with it flowing directly into the lake which would also cause more problems for the eco-system once again phosphorous and potassium.  As I’ve said before this area floods.  We have photos here.  I don’t think that the eco-system as well as the geography of this area could handle another sewage treatment plant and I would ask you to vote against this.  Thank you for your time. 
Mr. Phil Hirsch presented himself to the Board and stated I’m a local resident, tax payer of the Town of Cortlandt.  I am fully familiar with the applicant’s property located along Furnace Woods Road.  I followed the progress of the Yeshiva in the papers and the last meetings and I would encourage the Board to take a good look at this application.  I think it’s an aggressive, positive step that the Yeshiva has taken in order to address the problems of the property.  I think that the sewage treatment plant, if set up properly, can alleviate a lot of the questions that were raised tonight and as a resident I am fully aware of the property.  I travel Maple Avenue everyday, I see the students traveling back and forth walking on the property.  I am encouraged to have the Yeshiva as a good neighbor and I would like to see them proceed with their application.  It’s my understanding that the main purpose of this Yeshiva is to promote religious teachings.  I suggest to you that they are a unique neighbor but they are a good neighbor.  I find having a Yeshiva in our area and they are known worldwide, they have students from all over the country, from all over the world.  I was surprised to learn a number of the speakers tonight speaking about the voter registration posing questions to this Board with no verification of what they were talking about.  I don’t think that’s the Board’s purview is to answer their questions about the vote of registration.  I think that the issues raised by some of these concerns of the neighbors and I’m a neighbor.  I live on Jacob Road.  I was raised on this property and I’m aware of the septic issues that have been on this property for many, many years before the Yeshiva was there.  I’m concerned about the criticism that’s brought before this Board that may not give the Yeshiva an even field.  I believe that the cost of the sewage treatment plant, this waste water plant, is going to be phenomenal.  I don’t believe that the Yeshiva would go into a cost factor such as this without having everything in place.  I believe that this application can be a positive application.  You can address the issues concerning the number of students at this facility.  The numbers that are thrown out by these various other critics of this plan, we could be more accurate if you had to list the number of students who are there and the staff I’m sure that could be handled.  There’s also some criticism I heard from one gentleman who did not like certain boys walking on the road and found that to be a problem.  I find the opposite.  I find that that is a more serene picture that I would like to see along Maple Avenue where we walk our dogs, where we walk along the road, where we ride our bikes.  I would rather see these critics more concerned with the speeding cars along Maple Avenue than where they’re walking.  I have no problem.  It’s a 30 mile an hour zone.  I would ask the Board to recognize the importance of this application.  I think the Yeshiva has scaled down their projections before this Board and the Town.  They’ve now come up with a solution that addresses the septic issue at a great cost and I believe that you can put protection in place that would allow this application to proceed and I would ask that you give it a level playing field.
Mr. David Steinmetz stated I think we want to respond to a couple of things just to make sure that the record is clear.  I’m going to start with an issue that Mr. Hirsch said maybe is not before you in terms of your purview, and I don’t disagree with him, but I want to get rid of what I think is a silly issue and it’s an unfortunate issue that’s been raised, but it’s been raised so let’s try and deal with it.  Mr. Tumbarello indicated that he may not be that familiar with Westchester County Board of Elections and election law.  The good news is we spent a fair amount of time talking to the Board of Elections about the vote of registration issue and the reason I call it a silly issue is because there are 194 registered voters I’m told on this list and I would commend anyone to take a look at the list and see the people on the list.  People on the list are people who registered to vote at some point when they were on this property as they are absolutely allowed to if you reside on the property but whose names never came off the vote of registration list and when you contact Westchester County Board of Elections you’ll find out that Westchester County now has approximately 500,000 registered voters on their vote of registration list of which they believe 100,000 of those voters don’t belong on the vote of registration list it’s because people were here, they registered and they never came off the list.  That list is not indicative of anything other than people who actually resided at this property filled out the form at one time or another where a registered voter and they never came off the form.  Yacov Rothberg was a student at the Yeshiva from 1985 until 1988.  You’ll find his name on the vote of registration form and he hasn’t resided on the property for 21 years.  There’s nobody on the property who’s 107 years old.  That’s unfortunate, we certainly wish that maybe Rabbi Kanarek  father was still around, I don’t think he’d be 107 but the fact of the matter is there were people who registered – this is such an unfortunate and semi-disingenuous red herring issue but I feel I couldn’t let it go, we needed to respond, go take a look at the vote of registration list, just anecdotally I have college-aged child, just like many of these boys are college-aged and he changed his vote of registration to the State of Pennsylvania when he left for college in Pennsylvania thinking, I reside here, my vote is going to mean more in this last presidential election than it may in the state of New York.  Anecdotally, we’re still getting information from the Westchester County Board of Elections at my address just because you re-register elsewhere as the County told my office today, it doesn’t mean that you automatically get zapped off the computer.  Let’s go to the next issue and that is the numbers have still not been provided.  The speakers who have said the numbers have still not been provided have not looked at the information that in fact has been provided.  We’ve provided it in the form of an affidavit, we’ve provided it in the form of FISAP and beds reports and I know that the Town requested the reports directly from the State, from the Government regarding both the beds reports for the high school aged students and the FISAP reports for the post high school aged students.  Also, so the record is not clouded, this is not a primary school and I think two if not three speakers referred to K through 12, there are no children at this facility there are no young men at this facility being educated below the grade of 9th grade.  This is not a primary educational institution.  It’s a 9th through 12th grade and then post-secondary, or college-aged educated individuals.  The documents in terms of the number of students are clear in the record.  We went over them painstakingly.  We reviewed them with staff and my understanding is you all have now gotten that information and I wanted to make sure that there’s no misunderstanding.  In terms of somebody making a comment about 1985 and the Town giving an approval to a maximum number of students back at the time of the John Felt and Seymour Levine communications.  I think some of those speakers were not present at the last meeting when Mr. Vergano related to us precisely what Mr. Felt explained in a phone conversation that at no time did the Town grant a permit for a specific number or a maximum cap.  I want to turn to what I really think we should be talking about and that’s the empirical issues that relate to the sewage treatment plant.  This application has two issues: a reconstruction/renovation of Dodge City which is a replacement in effect, in kind, in the same location of a building with no impact, no adverse esthetic impacts, no adverse storm water impacts.  It’s effectively a replacement in kind with a modern, wonderful designed building, it’s a non-issue.  So, really the issue is the sewage treatment plant and as Mr. Trussler referred to there are important science issues that are raised without question about nutrient loading, discharges from the sewage treatment plant, how it’s treated, how it’s handled, how it’s maintained all of which we are quite confident it will adequately reviewed by this Board, by the New York State Department of Environmental Conservation, and by the Westchester County DOH.  Nothing that we have generated thus far or for any of those governmental agencies has been rejected as improper, incomplete, or otherwise defective.  But, there have been a couple of things that have been said tonight that are unfortunately inaccurate, sometimes grossly inaccurate.  I want to just start with the comment about the schools.  I’m not going to sit here and quarrel with a janitor from Blue Mountain Middle School, but I’m going to tell you that our professional engineers and Ms. Doyle, who has 23 years with the Westchester County Department of Health, is quite certain that those schools have SPDES permits because it’s not a septic system, it’s not a sub-surface discharge of effluent, it’s a surface discharge of effluent.  It’s not a septic system.  Somebody may have been told that.  I don’t question the fact that she may have been told by a janitor that it’s a septic system, but again, take a look at the documentation.  They’ve got permits, they’ve got a SPDES permit, they are regulated.  If you’ve got any questions about the literally hundreds upon hundreds of students who’s effluent is being discharged into the same stream corridor, feel free to ask both Mr. Ciarcia and Ms. Doyle.  They’re here to answer any of those questions.  That’s a non-issue.  There’s no question that that is untreated septic when compared with the treatment process that we’re presenting before you.  I think Tim Miller wants to respond to a couple of things about what Mr. Rutolo submitted and I just want to mention with regard to Rose Lake.  I think somebody on the Board may have asked last month whether that was a licensed and permitted recreational swimming facility and we confirmed, Louise, there is no record of a license for that to be a County regulated and permitted recreational swimming facility so you are all aware of that.  Tim, I think you wanted to address some of the environmental issues regarding the stream corridor. 
Mr. Tim Miller stated I just want to offer some perspective on some of the comments that were made here tonight regarding the sewage treatment plant, and the stream, and issues of pollution, and nitrification, and flooding, and things of that nature.  This sewage treatment plant is going to be permitted for a maximum discharge of 23,000 gallons per day and that’s a maximum number.  It’s an engineering safety number that’s based on population, the maximum population, and maximum usage.  Mr. Mastromonaco submitted a letter to you dated July 24th that centered the signature of Dan Ciarcia, professional engineer and he indicated that the water usage, I presume that this is probably fairly typical, the water usage at the Yeshiva in July of 2008 was about 13,000 gallons per day.  The design of the sewage treatment plant is almost invariably evaluated and designed based on maximum usages.  It’s the same as parking lots for shopping centers which were designed for Christmas demands.  It’s the same that Churches and Synagogues are designed for important holidays but the truth is that generally speaking most of these facilities are used somewhere around 50-75% of their capacity.  So, I would expect that on most days you would likely see a discharge into the treatment plant somewhere between 13 and 16,000 gallons per day.  That sounds like a big number 13 to 16,000 gallons per day and if you don’t sit and take a look at what it is and what it means in terms of flow you might be misled.  A typical garden hose that runs at full capacity discharges about 5 gallons a minute.  The sewage generated out of a 23,000 gallon per day sewage treatment plant produces about 16 gallons per minute over the course of 24 hours.  I would expect that this plant will discharge somewhere around 10 to 12 gallons a minute based on historic water consumption which is about two garden hoses flowing into the stream.  I think it’s important to put things into perspective.  We’re not talking about a giant stream filled discharge of treated effluent.  We’re talking about a stream that’s basically being carrying two garden hoses worth of effluent.  Sewage treatment plants have equalization tanks.  They are designed so that they operate on a regular and steady flow basis and that’s what we’re talking about.  This sewage treatment plant is also being designed to meet intermittent stream standards.  In Dan Ciarcia’s letter dated July 24th he presented the likely discharge limits for the intermittent stream standards so if you’ve reviewed that letter you will see that the dissolved oxygen minimum is 7 micrograms per liter.  Dissolved oxygen at that level can support trout.  The suspended solids maximum 10 milligrams per liter.  The pH, basically neutral, must be between 6.5 and 8.5 units.  The phosphorous total at a daily maximum is 1 milligram per liter.  These are very low volumes of nutrients that are contained in this effluent.  If there are nitrification problems in the downstream lake it would probably prudent to take a look at the watershed that drains to the downstream lake.  The watershed which I suspect is all the lands around the blue line stream that was presented on the gentleman’s chart is rather substantial.  It as you can also see is developed in a suburban style with yards that are the recipients of fertilizer, yards that are the recipient of animal waste; dogs, cats, the animals that live in the environment.  Between fertilizers and animal waste, substantial amounts of nutrients actually are being produced every day and every time it rains, they’re going into the stream and they’re going into the lake.  The lake may look very clean.  I would not drink the water under any circumstances.  Certainly, it may be swimmable, the Hudson River has been determined to be swimmable and every sewage treatment plant up and down the river discharges into the Hudson River.  There are tens of thousands of sewage treatment plants in the United States, they all operate under regulatory authority and for the most part they’ve operated quite well.  I’m looking at two hoses coming into this -- two-hose worth of water coming into this intermittent stream over the course of time of highly treated effluents.  Is that going to result in a significant adverse environmental impact?  Compared to the current situation at the Yeshiva, I think it’s very clear that the answer would be no.  This will result in an improvement of the environment.  People have said “well, we should do an environmental impact statement.”  Our application is for sewage treatment plant.  Are we going to have an adverse impact in association with the production of clean effluent at a very low level into the stream?  I can’t find the scientific basis that that would be the case.  People have said that they are for the environment and they want a vote against this application.  A vote against this application as far as I can tell would be a vote against the environment.  Failing to address the issue of the non-performing septic on the site is simply not an option.  The Yeshiva has spent a considerable amount of money looking to remedy the septic system on site.  They have not been able to do so, largely because of soil conditions at the site.  They’ve also spent substantial amounts of money pursuing other options whereby a sewage treatment plant would not be required on this site.  Those options have been determined not to be viable for a variety of reasons.  We believe that the sewage treatment plant represents in fact a very positive aspect to the environment and I think it’s a very easy decision to make as far as environmental conditions are concerned.  The discharge from the plant is again, it’s highly regulated.  It’s monitored on a regular basis.  There are various agencies: the County and the DEC who are responsible for making sure that the plant is operating properly.  The reports are maintained and the reports are reviewed.  People ask for assurances that the Town will enforce this special permit and the Town does have enforcement mechanisms in place and so does the County and the State.  I think that covers the open items that were on my list.  Thank you.
Mr. David Steinmetz stated one of the questions that we got at the last hearing was to provide your Board with a list of other similar facilities in terms of sewage treatment plants.  When I discussed that with our assembled professionals it’s a difficult question to answer with just one or two because the question becomes “are you comparing to a treatment plant that is of the similar size? A treatment plant of the similar nature of operation?  Or a treatment plant that looks the same?  So, what I’ve asked Dan Sciarcia and Louise Doyle to do is to compare notes and provide you with a list with a bunch of different treatment plants each of which may be similar to what we are proposing in a different way and we can explain what we mean by that.  Most of the treatment plants in Westchester County tend to be in Northern Westchester.  Most of the treatment plants tend to be in Northern Westchester because most of Northern Westchester, especially east of Cortlandt, and east of Yorktown, tend to be areas where there are no in-ground sewer systems so a lot of the Town of Somers, a lot of the Town of Lewisboro, North Salem tend to be areas where either there are large community septic systems or there are sewage treatment plants.  Louise and Dan have compiled a list including some that are located here in Cortlandt as well of some others that are actually nearby in either Putnam or Dutchess and we want to speak to that briefly so that you at least get an answer to that question but again, following up on what Tim has said, Westchester County DOH is ultimately going to be the regulatory body that reviews the design and construction.  New York State DEC is going to be the regulatory body that’s going to study the impact associated with the proposed discharge limits.  They’ll actually set the discharge limits.  We’ve been in discussion with them about phosphorous, VOD, etc, as Tim has already alluded to.  I’m going to turn it over to Louise who is going to address that question. 

Ms. Louise Doyle stated before I address the question of relatively similar sewage treatment plants, I just wanted to address something else that was said by one of the speakers regarding a worse case disaster talking about overflows to the plants, they’ve discussed when storm water gets into sanitary sewers due to old – usually that’s due to old, leaking sewers.  If you have an old sewer system that hasn’t been maintained in heavy rains, you can get rain storm water running into the sanitary sewers, you can also get ground water intrusion to the sanitary sewers and that will go to the sewage treatment plants which in case of heavy rainfall has caused overflows as we know in the Long Island Sound and the Hudson River.  This not only will be a brand new plant, but it will also be a brand new sewage collection system so all the pipes on site will be new.  They will be water tight.  They’ll be constructed to be water tight so there would be no concern during a heavy rainfall of storm water getting into the plant or ground water getting into the plant.  Hopefully that’s one other thing that can give you some extra comfort into how this plant will function.  As far as similar plants, the proposal for right now is for a process using what’s called a Bioclear system.  There is a facility in Hyde Park that uses a Bioclear system relatively similar flows also.  Our part of the treatment system also uses what’s called a moving bed reactor.  We have located one in Columbia County, 115,000 gallons a day, so the technology is the same, the flows on some cases are different.  As far as plants locally, I know you’re familiar in Town, there is Valeria, Springvale and Baltic Estates, there’s also the VA Hospital.  The reason I’m bringing up the VA Hospital is that plant is not enclosed, it is in the open, there’s open tanks, there’s open treatment systems and there have, as far as we’re aware, there are no odors.  That is a plant that you can go and visit.  I’m not sure about access to the site these days, but it’s a totally open facility.  Another plant that’s an open facility in a residential area is in the Town of Lewisboro, it’s called Wild Oaks.  It’s owned by the Town of Lewisboro.  Again, that’s open tanks, open to the atmosphere, to the best of our knowledge there are no records of odors off-site or really on-site.  That facility is under reconstruction right now for other reasons.  Yorktown Heights sewage treatment plant was recently rebuilt as part of the New York City upgrades.  They have open tanks.  Open treatment systems.  They share property with a compost facility in the north County Trailway goes through the site. Again, really no odor issue.  The other one that I want to speak about is Oakridge.  It’s in the Town of Lewisboro.  It’s a different treatment technology.  It’s an entirely enclosed facility.  Again, there are no odors, for two reasons: a) it’s enclosed and when you deal with an enclosed facility you have to be concerned with emissions and air pollution control equipment and secondly, depending upon the treatment technology, because it’s enclosed you have a serious chance of high humidity so then there’s a concern with the equipment and how the humidity affects the equipment.  It’s not to say it can’t be enclosed it’s just another thing that would be taken into consideration in the design.  I just wanted to offer you up there’s a few plants, you want to go visit them, you want more information, we certainly can get you more information.  Do you have any more questions?
Mr. Robert Foley asked is the one in Yorktown Route 35 Amawalk.  That would be the most similar?

Ms. Louise Doyle responded no.  I just wanted for you to see a brand new plant with open tanks that has the North County Trailway across the street from homes to show you an example of how a new plant properly operated will function. 

Mr. Robert Foley asked which of these would be the most similar to the proposed plant at Yeshiva?

Ms. Louise Doyle responded the one in Hyde Park because that’s the same treatment technology and the approximate flow is about the same.

Mr. John Klarl asked where’s the one in Hyde Park?

Ms. Louise Doyle responded Dan will have to…Anderson School?

Mr. John Klarl stated on Route 9D?

Mr. Dan Ciarcia responded yes.
Mr. David Steinmetz stated it will come as no surprise to the Board and even some of the members of the public have already certainly alluded to what they’ve suspected I would say at the end of this and that is a request to close the public hearing.  I want to address that very briefly.  I would ask that you entertain closing the public hearing this evening for a couple of reasons: 1) closing the public hearing does not grant the applicant any approval.  The public has been heard.  The applicant has provided information.  Your Board has commented.  The public hearing has been opened for two sessions and we have heard tonight the record will show the same limited scope of comments as we heard the first night with the exception of the vote of registration new issue.  2)  The closing of the public hearing does not finalize the Board’s SEQRA determination which has not yet been made but it puts you in a position to ultimately formulate one.  3)  Closing the public hearing does not finalize any conditions that your Board would still decide to ultimately impose.  You have every right as you’ve told us numerous times to impose a variety of conditions some of which we have discussed with your Board and with staff including setting student capacity limitations which my client has voluntarily agreed to impose, staff and guest housing issues, landscaping and lighting which is an issue we’ve discussed probably more so in the original application as to landscaping along Furnace Woods Road, however, it is part of the landscape plan that has been presented to you as part of the site plan and there have been a number of discussions in this application with staff and with the Board about a lighting plan which has been generated.  We’ve discussed a community liaison.  We’ve also discussed school signage and I’m sure Mr. Klarl has a list of some of the things that we’ve talked about in the original application, but we believe that ultimately your Board will have the ability post closure of the hearing to engage in a discussion with the applicant and quite frankly to engage in a discussion with your professional staff about appropriate conditions.  We feel there is no legitimate and reasonable basis to continue the hearing at this point.  The comments have been made.  Your Board has heard those comments.  Your Board has heard the answers from the applicant.  If you wish more information from us, we are assembled here tonight, we’re ready to keep going as long as you want and answer those questions.  We feel we’ve really given you that information and probably the most technical of the issues, this is going to be the third time I say it tonight but it bears being stated because I don’t think your staff disagrees and I certainly don’t believe the other governmental regulators disagree, DEC has to get into the nuts and bolts of what comes out of the discharge of the treatment plant.  They will set those limits.  They are the governmental body that does that.  I’ve discussed that with your Council to make sure that none of us are in disagreement as to where the ultimate regulatory authority on that garden hose discharge ultimately gets regulated.  I would ask you to seriously entertain closing the public hearing.  This process is not over.  There are things that still need to take place.  The SEQRA process is not over and we would ask you to move forward for one very simple reason.  Tim alluded to the fact that there is an environmental benefit if this project goes forward in terms of coming off an aging septic system that’s now 50 years old.  The Westchester County Department of Health wrote a letter at the beginning of this application stating that this is a priority matter.  I’ve never been involved in an application where the Health Department said to the other regulators “you need to deal with this one on a priority basis.”  I’m pleased we got that because we need to deal with this one.  I’d ask you to entertain closure of the public hearing. 
Mr. Steve Vutollo stated the very idea of closing this to the public at this time is absurd.  You’re trying to rush this thing through the summertime when the majority of people can’t be here to voice their concerns about this.  Yes it is a private facility up there that we spent tens of thousands of dollars each year to maintain as part of our community efforts in this regard and this is a way too big of an issue and closing it out without going continuously on with this effort.  This is a critical factor. 

Ms. Susan Todd stated thank you for creating this water system with all the photographs, I know it took a lot of work and it had a big impact on me because I didn’t know where the flow went to.  I remember vividly when we were working on Abbe Rose how important the discharge was and whether it went into an intermittent stream or a wetland and how fast the flow is going and all those factors so I feel it’s very important that we determine baseline tests in this system in terms of the same factors that we were testing for in the discharge, the dissolved oxygen, the solids, pH, phosphorous, ammonias, colliform, nitrogen.  We should hire a consultant to do maybe a 10 point survey of this system so that we know what we have there now.  I agree, I think that if the sewage treatment plant works well, we are going to be in a better situation than we are with the faulty septic system right now.  I’ve been on that site.  I’ve smelled it and it’s been bad for a long time.  I’m glad the Yeshiva is trying to do something better but I also want to make sure that all of that water system and the use, the recreational use that it has right now whether it’s permitted or not, people use it is given the utmost care and that we know what we’re dealing with from the beginning so if there is a problem, we will be able to detect it and have an idea where it’s coming from.  Whether it’s with a wetland person, or with a hydrologist, I think we can do that relatively quickly.  It’s just a test of 10 points, but then we’ll have that baseline knowledge in the Town in case something does go wrong.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated that’s fine. The DOH letter referred to earlier, the July 31st letter, does state that it is necessary for the applicant to submit to DEC an engineer’s report evaluating the proposed discharge impacts on the receiving waters. 

Ms. Susan Todd stated it doesn’t say where those tests are being made.  They’re going to embank it right at the point where it goes under.
Mr. Ed Vergano stated we can actually…

Ms. Susan Todd continued tell them where we want it made?

Mr. Ed Vergano stated right.

Mr. Tim Miller stated Mr. Chairman regarding Ms. Todd’s comments for baseline sampling, as we pointed out on a number of occasions this treatment plant is being designed to intermittent stream standards.  Basically, what that accounts for is discharge to a stream channel that’s dry.  The worse-case situation is that the discharge from the sewage treatment plant is the water in the stream.  There’s no scientific basis for doing baseline studies of a dry stream.  What’s the point?  I need to understand scientifically what you’re getting at Susan?

Ms. Susan Todd stated well look at all the other water bodies that are in that system.

Mr. Tim Miller stated that’s downstream.  If the Town wants to enter into…

Ms. Susan Todd stated your intermittent stream is probably going to be probably about 20 feet in distance and then it’s going to hit the wetland.

Mr. Tim Miller responded that’s correct.

Ms. Susan Todd stated I don’t care what happens in that 20 feet, but I would like us to know for sure the water quality in these other areas in the system.

Mr. Tim Miller stated that’s interesting information but it really has nothing to do with this application.

Ms. Susan Todd stated I disagree.

Mr. Tim Miller asked well tell me what it does.  I want to know.

Ms. Susan Todd responded I think what we’re looking at the downstream impacts, potential impacts of what could happen if there was a problem in the sewage treatment plant.

Mr. Tim Miller asked well how does baseline sampling tell you what those downstream impacts are going to be?

Ms. Susan Todd responded if I know there’s 0.1% phosphorous right now in a certain place and a neighbor starts feeling that there’s like smell in the water and we get down there and there’s a 100% phosphorous won’t that give me some indication?

Mr. Tim Miller responded but you won’t know where it’s coming from.  What we’re doing is testing the effluent all the time from the sewage treatment plant.  That’s what tells you what’s going into the water.  Once you get downstream, you’ve got cars traveling on the road, you’ve got people living in the watershed, you’ve got people applying fertilizer which is phosphorous, nitrogen and potassium.  How do you know where it’s coming from if you go downstream and start collecting data?  We’re testing at our treatment plant.  That’s what tells the Town, that’s what tells the County, that’s what tells the State what our water quality is and that we are in compliance.  We’re either in compliance or we’re not.  Testing downstream does not tell you anything about what’s happening with our plant.  It tells you what’s happening in the watershed.  It might be of interest to the Town to do that for other purposes but it’s really not connected with our application and I don’t want to do something like that as a means of delaying a decision on our application quite honestly.  There’s just no scientific basis for it that I’m able to identify.

Ms. Susan Todd stated I don’t think this will delay your application.

Mr. Tim Miller stated why would we do it if it’s not material to our application?

Ms. Susan Todd responded I feel like it is.  I feel that the people who spoke and brought this information, and if I lived downstream from this plant with the kind of concerns there are now, I would want to have a baseline of what my stream or my wetlands qualities are right now.  So, that if there was a change or was a problem, you’re right we won’t know exactly where it’s coming from but we may have some indication and I think that’s worth taking a day, frankly, to go and do these tests.

Mr. Tim Miller responded I have no objection if the Town wants to take time to do these tests.  I would object to the test being tied in any way to this application.  I just don’t see a reason why it would be.  It may be a terrific idea and people are swimming in their lake and they may want to know what the baseline is and what the future conditions are but you know, if people are concerned about swimming and the quality of water in their lake, there’s a lot more effective things that can be done within that watershed to make that their water stays pure.  Managing fertilizer applications, educating the public, requiring clean-up after dogs when they’re doing their daily business, do you have any idea how many pounds of waste material are coming into that stream system from dogs that are living in the watershed?  It’s incredible, and it’s never being addressed.  Doing the baseline study will do nothing to address that.

Ms. Susan Todd stated I totally disagree.  Alright, say we do find really high levels of dog feces in some stream that people are swimming in when we do this test, they affect some change by knowing the facts of what’s actually there.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated Ms. Todd I don’t think Tim is going to disagree with that point.  I think what you two are debating is whether or not the study that you’re asking for is necessary in conjunction with this application or whether it’s necessary in conjunction with the health and well-being of the environment and the stream.  You weren’t here at the last meeting, one of the reasons that we brought Louise Doyle on board, in my pre-submission meetings with staff and my understanding of where this application was headed in terms of empirical data, it became quite clear to me that a review of the issues affecting the stream and the waste water treatment plant and how it would be regulated by DOH and DEC were going to be critical issues before your Board’s lead agency and interacting with DOH and DEC.  Repeatedly, I sought out somebody who would help assist our team as an experienced professional and I kept getting the same name over and over and that’s Louise Doyle.  That’s because Louise for 23 years regulated waste water treatment plants among other sewage effluent situations in the County.  I’d like Louise to address the issue of baseline sampling and maybe that would shed some light on this.

Ms. Louise Doyle stated to address the issue of baseline sampling I need to go back to the design in the sewage treatment plant.  As Tim Miller and others have said, this is designed to intermittent stream standards.  What may not be exactly clear is that intermittent stream standards are the most stringent standards that the DEC issues.  Mr. Vergano spoke to a State man in the Health Department’s letter where they concurred with the flow of 23,000 gallons a day that an engineering report would be required.
Mr. Ed Vergano stated [inaudible] to submit to the DEC and engineer’s report evaluating the proposed drainage discharge impact on the receiving waters.  I can certainly ask them to apply it on what receiving waters downstream.

Ms. Louise Doyle stated the Health Department’s flow concurrence letter is a standard letter that the Health Department will write when they’re given any sewage treatment plant application.  Unfortunately, it’s a form letter and the same language is used whether you’re proposing intermittent stream standards or you’re proposing less stringent standards.  An engineering report is part of our application to the Health Department, it is also part of what we’ve already submitted to the DEC unbeknownst to the Health Department.  In that we have talked about the stream and our proposed discharge limits.  To do a full analysis of the ability of the stream to accept the treatment plant effluent in this case will not provide a benefit because the levels that we are proposing are the most stringent.  Possibly depending upon the time of year it’s done the results could say “well you don’t need to treat as much as much as you’re proposing” and certainly nobody’s advocating for that but I just want to be clear that an engineering report certainly will be submitted.  The standards are what they are as I said and we are going for the most stringent ones.  Regarding a stream survey separate from this application to determine what may be going on in the watershed is certainly something that the Town could consider doing but based upon my experience at the Health Department to get a one shot sample in time is probably not the best way to go about it because it’s just going to show you what happened on that one day that you collected the sample.  For it to be a benefit it needs to be much more comprehensive over a period of months, a period of dry weather, wet weather, flooding, summer, winter, etc.  but, again, while that will tell you reams about what’s going on downstream it will not address what’s coming out of the plant.  What’s coming out of the plant is monitored daily.  It’s tested daily, weekly, monthly, quarterly depending upon the parameter.  Those results are reported to the Health Department, they’re reported to the State.  If there were to be a problem downstream at some point in the future, as Tim Miller said, first of all you can’t be sure where it came from but second, your best thing to do would be to go to the regulatory authorities and say “we’d like to review the reports that were filed by this specific facility for this month because we noticed a problem.”  And, then you can see, okay did they have an upset, or has everything been operating normally?  That would be my way of dealing with the problem and it’s the way I’ve dealt with it in the past when someone says we have an issue it’s like “okay, let’s see what’s going on around and treat the whole area and see what could be contributing.”  If there is a plant we’ll look at the discharge to make sure they’re operating properly.  Again, it could be someone had a septic failure.  You don’t know and while it may be admirable and good thing to do for the Town it’s not going to have any affect on our discharge.

Mr. Ivan Kline asked you just mentioned that unbeknownst to the County Health Department that there has been a report submitted to the DEC already?
Ms. Louise Doyle responded yes.

Mr. Ivan Kline asked do we have that as part of our record here?

Ms. Louise Doyle responded I believe so. 

Mr. Ivan Kline asked what’s the date of that report?

Mr. Ciarcia, that’s the report before you at the last meeting June 30th.

Ms. Louise Doyle continued we submitted a copy of that to the DEC in support of our draft permit limits.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated the waste water treatment report.

Ms. Louise Doyle responded right.

Ms. Susan Todd stated the daily results of the discharge from the treatment plant are available where?

Ms. Louise Doyle responded they would be available through the owner and they’re also available for review at the County Health Department free of information.  Feel free to go visit them at any time.  Just let them know you’re coming.

Mr. Steven Kessler responded we’ve spent a lot of time on this this evening and deservedly so but I think an hour and a half is probably my limit on this.  David you’ll recall we accelerated the public hearing at your request, not that I care but there was much criticism about us doing that.  If you also recall at that June meeting I did say to you “don’t come back and stand up here and say let’s close the public hearing.”
Mr. David Steinmetz stated that was after we conducted it in July.  You told me in June “don’t come to the July meeting and…”

Mr. Steven Kessler stated no, that’s not quite what I said, I said “don’t come here, you know we’ll conduct the public hearings as long as it takes but don’t stand up there and say let’s close it because I’ve heard everything that there is to hear.”  But, that being said I am not inclined to closing the public hearing this evening and I say that because I do not want to close this public hearing on this issue, this important issue with three Board members not here.  That’s not your fault, that’s our fault that they’re not here this evening, but as the public said people do have other things to do in the month of August.  Sadly, we do not.  I will ask that we adjourn this, bring this back and let’s have the full Board here hopefully in September so that we can one last time have the public hearing hopefully leave the public hearing to issues that are clarifying issues, issues that have not already been asked and not rehash the issues of the vote of registration, the number of students and things of that sort.  I will put everyone on notice now that we will have our next public hearing but it will be short and to the point and just address those things again that are pertinent to this application. 

Mr. David Steinmetz asked before you adjourn is there anything you want the Yeshiva to ask of its team to bring before you and submit before that September meeting at this point?

Mr. Ivan Kline stated I was going to do it on the question but since it’s just been asked, I think that it would be helpful to have something in writing that sets forth some of the conclusions that Tim Miller just gave with respect to the impact of discharge.  I think there’s two aspects to it: 1) the impact from the point-of-view of effluent and the concerns that are being raised which I recognize as something that State DEC really has the primary jurisdiction over but obviously it is a big concern here. 2) From the point-of-view of the analogy that he was giving to the garden hoses.  Let’s assume it was potable water that was being discharged, will that have any measurable or material impact from a flooding perspective, putting aside what the content of it is, just from treat it as if it were potable water.  Quantitatively, could that have any impact anywhere downstream as a result of that quantity being added in periods of heavy rains or whatever because presumably this will function and discharge that amount every day whether it’s dry, wet, hurricane or what have you.  I think those are really the issues as you said.  I think we’ve dealt plenty with the student count issues and so forth.  Those are the things that could potentially impact the area that we need to see more on. 

Mr. David Steimetz stated I just want to add one more thing so that we’re clear on, the flow confirmation letter says 23,000 gallons per day as I think the Chair questioned me at the last meeting.  The water usage on site is certainly below that and we have no expectation that the treatment plant would be operating at 23,000 gallons per day.  That is the regulated maximum capacity.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated when Tim was up there and spoke about the two garden hoses, I think he was using a number of about 15 or 16 thousand, correct me if I’m wrong.  

Mr. David Steimetz stated that would be appropriate. That’s the right math.

Mr. Joel Benedict stated for three years, staff and family numbers at the facility we have never gotten a number.  Just some idea.  We’re always talking 250, 225, 200 whatever students, students, students.
Mr. Steven Kessler stated let’s be clear we have 225 students.  Your proposal is 225 students and 20 staff.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated my recollection is that at the last meeting we went through the staff number. 

Mr. Joel Benedict stated no we did not.  I would also like to know how come the last Board meeting wasn’t posted on the video site?

Mr. Ivan Kline responded I can’t answer that but we’ve discussed the staff, the number of staff numbers at some length at the last public hearing. 

Mr. Joel Benedict stated those numbers have always been mumbled over.  We don’t know.  We’ve never gotten any answers.  The 20 staff was from the 1985 letter.  We want to revert to that letter?  Then, let’s revert to that letter.  That’s all, that’s the answer I want.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated the maximum number was all in 300, that includes the students, the commuter faculty and staff, the eight guest suites, the five one-bedroom apartments assuming they’re all occupied fully.  All in 300 cap, at a max, with the families.  I’m saying all in.  If every dorm room and every apartment and suite was occupied it would be 300.  We’ll take that up at the next meeting.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated I move that we adjourn this public hearing to September 1, seconded, on the question.

Mr. Robert Foley stated on the question I was puzzled by something that Mr. Miller and that Ms. Doyle said and they don’t have to answer now in the material that will be forthcoming because Ms. Doyle is speaking from experience from the County.  Could she let us know, not now, if in the past, she may not have been involved, if similar baseline studies were done with intermittent streams in that general area, dry period, wet periods, let us know.

With all in favor saying “aye.”



*



*



*


OLD BUSINESS
PB 5-09      a.
Referral from the Town Board for a Recommendation from the Planning Board for an amendment to the Zoning Code and the Subdivision Regulations regarding not accepting applications for site development plans or preliminary layout and final  plats for subdivisions if the subject property has any outstanding violations of the Town Zoning Ordinance or Town Code.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated we discussed this at the work session and we have a draft resolution.  Mr. Kline requested some edits to that which we made and just so we’re clear, what we’re going to say is the “Planning Board shall have the authority to continue or not to continue to process any application.”  That will be the wording?

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated in all three locations.

Mr. Steven Kessler reiterated in all three locations.  

Ms. Susan Todd stated I make a motion that we adopt resolution no. 32-09 with the additional clauses in each law, seconded with all in favor saying “aye.”
PB 3-09      b.
Application of Ryan Main LLC, c/o Finklestein-Morgan, for a recommendation to the Town Board for a Special Permit for Residential Re-Use, and for Site Development Plan Approval and for Wetland, Steep Slope and Tree Removal permits for the construction of 56 residential units to replace the existing 56 units on a 19.3 acre site located on the south side of Route 6 and the west side of Regina Avenue as shown on a 7 page set of drawings entitled “Special Land Use Permit for Pondview Commons on the Boulevard” prepared by Cronin Engineering dated October 13, 2008 (see prior PB 26-96).


Mr. Steven Kessler stated we discussed this at the work session as well.  We will refer this back this evening.  Staff is going to prepare a part II and a part III of the environmental impact (EAF).  The staff also gave us this evening some recommended topics for an expanded study, an expanded part III and we will look at those as well over the next month and bring it back to the September 1st meeting with recommendations.
Mr. David Steimetz stated we received that list from staff today so we certainly would like the opportunity to comment on it.  We don’t need to do that this evening since Mr. Cronin received it earlier today and I received it this evening.  We would like certainly to converse with staff about this between now and the next meeting.  Mr. Chairman it would be helpful, because my client is here now and was not here at the work session, just so that we’re clear, Mr. Vergano did report to the Board about last night’s Town Board work session and that the Town Board is addressing and inclined to address the issue of coverage as we discussed with the Board at the last meeting.  Is that accurate?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded yes they will be addressing that issue.

Mr. Robert Foley stated I make a motion that we refer this back, seconded with all in favor saying “aye.”

PB 14-06    c.
Application of Richard Heinzer for Preliminary Plat Approval and for Steep Slope and Tree Removal Permits for a 2 lot minor subdivision of a 39,480 sq. ft. parcel of land located on the east side of Crumb Place, approximately 200 feet south of Ogden Avenue, as shown on a 3  page set of drawings entitled “Site Plan Prepared for Richard Heinzer” prepared by Ralph  G. Mastromonaco, P.E. latest revision dated April 22, 2009 and on a 4 page set of drawings entitled “Proposed Site Conditions Plan” prepared by James DeLalia, RLA, latest revision dated November 17, 2008. (THIS APPLICATION WILL BE ADJOURNED TO THE SEPTEMBER 1, 2009 PLANNING BOARD MEETING.)
PB 23-08    d.
Application of John P. Alfonzetti, P.E., for the property of Angelo Cipriano, for Preliminary Plat Approval and a Tree Removal Permit for a 4 lot major subdivision of 9.25 acres for property located off of Mt. Airy Road E., southeast of Joseph Wallace Drive, as shown on a 4 page set of drawings entitled “Preliminary 4 Lot Subdivision Mountain View Estates” prepared by John Alfonzetti, P.E. latest revision dated June 26, 2009.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated there was a site visit and I believe two Board members attended that site visit along with staff.  Any comments?
Ms. Susan Todd stated when John Bernard and I went to the site and we walked all four lots and also the road extension from the end of the cul-de-sac and I think one of the things that we were interested in seeing was what the, since it was such a large forested area, what kind of tree removal we’re talking about in terms of putting the houses in and the septic systems and you had mentioned that you could do this for us.

Mr. John Alfonzetti responded and we did.  Up here on the screen this shows four lots, this being the existing lot so obviously there are no trees being removed.  The existing residence at this time is going to be renovated on the same footprint.  Lot number two, proposed residence right, septic’s in the back.  I’ve roughly counted the trees that are going to be removed, or potentially removed once we’ve determined the final size of the septic.  I came up with about 35 trees on lot number two.

Ms. Susan Todd stated it’s a little bit hard for me to tell where the trees are going to be removed.  It would almost be better if you had the septic as empty of trees and where the houses were is also empty and with the buffer around it so we could really see how much open area.

Mr. John Alfonzetti responded we’ll make that adjustment.  We kind of just threw this together.  Sometimes, if the area is clear of trees we don’t know quite how many trees we’re removing and that’s what we’re trying to show here.  

Ms. Susan Todd stated maybe just make them a different color, the ones that are removed.

Mr. John Alfonzetti responded put x’s through them.

Ms. Susan Todd responded make them a different color, it’s so much more vivid.

Mr. John Alfonzetti stated but this is the area obviously that the septic’s going to go in.  We’re going to determine the final size of that septic field and obviously what we’re showing here is both expansion and the primary system, so half of that would be impacted.  What I’m giving you a count on right now is the maximum amount of roughly 35 trees just in that one lot.  And, you’ll find that’s partially the same on each of the other two lots between 30 to 35 trees on each lot between the septic and the proposed driveway.
Mr. Steven Kessler asked which is the existing?

Mr. John Alfonzetti stated the present septic system is right there in that little circular area.  The existing septic system is right here, we’re proposing to upgrade the septic in this area here.  Here are the other two lots: the house septic system, septic system and the proposed house.  Again, both of those other lots roughly 30 to 35 trees at a maximum to be removed between the house, the driveway and the proposed septic.
Mr. Chris Kehoe stated one thing that we discussed is that the applicant did get an arborist who located those species and size and a surveyor located the trees but one thing that we discussed at the work session is the potential of the Town has our own arborist now and maybe the applicant providing some funds for our arborist to actually go out there and give us a report maybe to the effect that if you shifted the road a little bit or you shifted this a little bit a certain important tree could be preserved.  If that’s what the Board wants to do.

Ms. Susan Todd responded I think considering the quality of the forest, actually the value of the trees to the potential to the people who would be living in those homes in the future it would be well worth, money well spent because it could really identify the healthiest trees and maybe even a way to move things around just a tad to preserve some more forest.

Mr. John Alfonzetti stated I will certainly discuss that with applicant.  The owner of the property, Angelo, is still out of town so as soon as he gets back I’ll discuss that with him.  I expect him back next week.  Does anybody have an idea how much that potentially would be at this point.

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded the short answer is no but they’ll really be reviewing your arborists work and probably a site inspection and then a generation of a short report.  I don’t think it should be that bad.

Mr. Robert Foley asked I had a question, I did go to the site yesterday, I missed Sunday morning visit and really only looked at lots 2 and 4 area, I didn’t want to venture – I did go up to the existing home, but I also was concerned about trees but also because either correspondence we got, is there another road access into this site?  I did go around behind into Georgia Lane.  There was a letter we got from someone.

Mr. John Alfonzetti responded the street right here comes back out on Mount Airy.  I suppose that we could put access there.  I think that would cause a considerable amount more of trees and things to be removed.  What used to go up that access way was a utility…

Mr. Robert Foley stated I thought maybe the person who wrote the letter was talking about another existing neighborhood below.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated that seems like an excessive grade also in that area.

Mr. John Alfonzetti stated the beginning on Mount Airy is excessive, it is.  It appears that it was done, again there’s all the utility line and poles are still there.  The existing utilities don’t come in off of there, they come in off of the cul-de-sac at the end of Joseph Wallace.  But, at one point they did come up that little strip of land. 

Ms. Susan Todd stated I would say another thing that we could consider as far as reducing the impact on the cul-de-sac would be to make Cipriano Drive, the road into the four new homes, much more narrow, keep it smaller and save more trees and have it be more of a shared driveway rather than – that’s the mama of all cul-de-sacs.  It’s about 50 feet across.  It’s huge.

Mr. John Alfonzetti stated it meets the Code requirements for a public road at this point as it’s shown. 

Mr. Ed Vergano stated the point that’s being made though is if it was a common driveway you could actually reduce the width by at least another four feet.  What is it a 24 foot proposed width?

Ms. Susan Todd stated 50 foot right now.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated no 50 foot is the right of way but the physical pavement.

Mr. John Alfonzetti responded I think it was more like 30.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated well 30 is in our Code, we routinely wave that to 24.  For a common driveway we could reduce that down to 20.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated Mr. Chairman I move that we refer this back to staff and that we direct staff to retain an arborist to review the applicant’s work here and to make recommendations, seconded with all in favor saying “aye.”

PB 10-06    e.
Application of Sammy Musa Eljamal of Best Rent Properties for Amended Site Development Plan Approval and a Wetland Permit for the construction of a new access drive on the south side of the site and for a proposed 2,048 sq. ft. addition to the car wash at the existing gas station/car wash located on the south west corner of Route 6 and the Cortlandt Town Center Access Drive as shown on a 6 page set of drawings entitled “Site Development Plans, Proposed Site Modifications” prepared by Bohler Engineering, P.C. dated July 2, 2009 (see prior PB 25-90 & 42-94.)

Mr. Jim Gillespie presented himself to the Board and stated from Bohler Engineering and with me is the applicant’s representative Brian Orser.  Just to recap, we were last here in April, right after our March site walk.  We had briefly gone over the site walk, some of the changes we had made to the plan and the Board had asked us to prepare a response to comments from the Town engineer which we’ve done.  We’ve prepared a full set of design documents and our response letter revised SEQRA and we’re here tonight to go over that response letter if there’s any questions.
Mr. Steven Kessler stated I guess the big question -- we discussed this at the work session staff seems to feel that the traffic flow is still a bit awkward on the site and I think they would like to spend more time with the plan and with you to go through that and perhaps it needs a little bit scaling back, is that fair to say?
Mr. Ed Vergano responded yes that is fair to say.  We’re concerned about the traffic movements and some of the conflicting movements, a little bit difficult to describe without a pointer with me, but I think we can accomplish a lot at a staff meeting.  Right in this area here, you have the islands right here and of course you have the parking for the convenience store up here.  We’re concerned about movements of people accessing the islands, accessing the convenience store, the conflicting traffic between the islands and the convenience store and of course coupled with the traffic circling the property for the car wash so there’s a lot going on in a small property and the required coverage of course is 30%, I believe what you’re proposing 17 so maybe approaching that 30% might reduce things and make the traffic a little bit better but that’s something we can discuss at our staff  meeting.
Mr. Jim Gillespie stated we can talk about circulation if you’d like but the canopy layout and the convenience store layout are pretty common layouts and the circulation around the building is a one-way circulation similar to exactly as it exists today.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated again, you’d be coming in – all traffic would be entering at this point over here, I’m sorry that enters at this point here without the circle here to access the pumps, come out to access the convenience store and then head out this way.

Mr. Jim Gillespie responded they can also head out on Route 6 as they do today.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated I’m talking about those prohibitive movements from Route 6.  They would have to access the – would you have noted it as Westbrook Drive Road which is actually the entrance road to the Cortlandt Town Center, it’s not Westbrook Drive.  At any event, that’s something we could discuss at our meeting.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated they need to be satisfied before we’re satisfied.  I think it’s best that you sit down with the staff.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated just bring a lot of turning templates with you.

Ms. Susan Todd stated I make a motion that we refer this back to staff, seconded with all in favor saying “aye.”

PB 6-09      f.
Application of Appian Way Ventures, LLC for Site Development Plan Approval for site improvements including a gravel driveway and parking and additional landscaping for an existing industrial building on a 3.2 acre parcel of property located on the Sixth Street and Madalyn Avenue as shown on a 3 page set of drawings entitled “Proposed Site Plan” prepared by Gemmola & Associates, LLC latest revision dated July 23, 2009 (see prior PB 26-04.)
Mr. Steven Kessler stated we’re going to set up a site visit to go see the property on August the 30th, Sunday morning 9:00 a.m.
Mr. Robert Foley stated I make a motion that we refer this back and, as you said, set the site visit for August 30th.

Mr. Bill Shunck presented himself to the Board and stated I represent Appian Way and that’s our primary issue.  We wanted to get a site visit.

Seconded.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked on the question is there anything specific that we need to see on that site Bill?

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked no, it’s all existing right?  I want to show the Board some potential landscaping issues but nothing that you need to specifically mark in the field.

All in favor saying “aye.”



*



*



*




CORRESPONDENCE

PB 16-99     a.
Letter dated July 13, 2009 from Thomas Hausle requesting Planning Board approval of the placement of five (5) speed bumps in the Hollowbrook Mews Development located on Oregon Road.
Mr. Ivan Kline stated Mr. Chairman I make a motion that we approve this request subject to approval of the specifics by Department of Technical Services, seconded.

Mr. Robert Foley stated on the question I brought up at the work session if our director of DOTS could also look into an alternative other than bumps or humps only because it was brought to my attention by a member of the Ambulance Corps about some of the difficulties with speed bumps regarding their vehicle axles.
 All in favor saying “aye.”

PB 25-99     b.
Letter dated July 17, 2009 from Scott Wheeler requesting Planning Board approval for exterior building façade modifications at the Cortlandt Healthcare Building located at 110 Oregon Road.
Ms. Susan Todd stated I make a motion that we approve this subject to Architectural Advisory Council and the Department of Technical Services, seconded with all in favor saying “aye.”

PB 29-99    c.
Letter dated July 21, 2009 from Jack Reynolds requesting Planning Board approval of an exterior façade remodel for the existing Kohl’s Store located at 3008 East Main Street (Route 6.)
Mr. Steven Kessler stated as I mentioned at the top of the meeting the applicant has asked that we take this off the agenda this evening, we will do so. 
Mr. Robert Foley stated I make a motion to refer this back, seconded with all in favor saying “aye.”

PB 5-08     d.
Letter dated July 21, 2009 from Percy & Barbara Montes requesting the 2nd, six-month time extension of Preliminary Plat Approval for the Radio Terrace Subdivision.
Mr. Ivan Kline I move that we adopt resolution no. 33-09 granting this request, seconded with all in favor saying “aye.”


*



*



*

Mr. Steven Kessler stated we had the addition to the agenda that is Planning Board no. 12-94 regarding a request from façade alterations for Bed Bath and Beyond which is moving into the formal Linens’ N ’ Things space at the Cortlandt Town Center. 

Ms. Susan Todd stated at the work session we had a discussion about the size of the sign and the need to – I think they were going to the Zoning Board of Appeals to get a variance on the size.  We also talked about, I think it was the bottom part if that could be raised, not of the sign but of the…

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I think the architect can address that but part of the proposal was to raise that parapet wall by three feet to deal with the big sign and just the question came up if you can’t do that big a sign are you still going to propose to raise the wall?

Mr. Peter O’Mara presented himself to the Board and stated with O’Mara Associates, I’m the architecture engineering firm that was retained to do this project.  Let me start by presenting to this board, it’s basically a larger photo of what you see there on the lower left hand corner.  This is what we have now on site, it’s an abandoned former Linens ’N’ Things and the existing sign for this store, as I’m sure many of you already know, the letters were four foot six inches high and the square footage of that was 159 square feet.  Basically, what we’re proposing to do here is no change of use, Linens ’N’ Things to Bed Bath and Beyond, many people can’t even tell the difference.  I think what we’re going to do is try to preserve as much of the efface façade as possible and probably just add a few architectural elements to make it look like a Bed Bath and Beyond.  As far as raising the parapet, basically we’re not sure if we were going to do that.  I could tell you right now we probably don’t need to.  I don’t think we’re going to be able to get the size sign that is the prototypical sign for Bed Bath and Beyond so, with that said, if the sign gets smaller, the proportion of the façade is not going to look right if we raise the façade.  I think my client can agree that we may just maintain the height that’s there now.  All of the store front is going to remain.  We may add an additional door to the right hand side for an additional tenant that will be carved out of the existing space.

Ms. Susan Todd asked if you didn’t raise it and kept it on a smaller scale, how big would it be?

Mr. Peter O’Mara responded we would still probably want the sign to be at least as big as what the Linens ’N’ Things was allowed to have.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked the 159 square feet?

Mr. Peter O’Mara responded the 159, although everything with this is going to be based on what the Bed Bath and Beyond folks are willing to do and I think my client here can speak to that.

Mr. Tim Clarke presented himself to the Board and stated I work for KD Realty.  As you know, tenants for spaces such as this are in a unique position or at least one they haven’t been in for a long time where they’re driving the bus.  Unfortunately, they have certain expectations and they have certain reservations about the site in that it’s so far removed from the back of the street front.  Their concern is seeing the store front.  I don’t know that you’re going to see the store front no matter how big you make the sign but unfortunately they have expectations of a larger sign.  We have not executed a lease.  This is one of the three remaining issues that we have with these folks, but their expectations have been severely curtailed back a little bit from a billboard to folks that’s not what was on the Linens ’N’ Things.  We did review, after Chris advised us, that there was 159 square feet that was sought after the Ordinance I believe allows 120 that was granted to Linens ’N’ Things.  What we would like to see is the minimum of 159, but then go to the Zoning Board for a 240 if we can.  But, tonight, what we would like is from you folks that we can proceed with the façade, the thing with 120 square foot that’s allowed and we’ll work through the other issues as we go.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated as Ms. Todd said we have an Architectural Review Committee that helps us with these matters so working out with them is all you really need to do.  Are they moving?  Isn’t there a Bed Bath and Beyond somewhere close by?
Ms. Susan Todd responded Yorktown.

Mr. Tim Clarke responded they’re not sharing with us what their plans are whether they’re going to duplicate the store or whether they’re – and it’s not unusual right now to duplicate the store because obviously this store has a history of turning out a certain amount of profit for them.

Ms. Susan Todd stated I make a motion that we give this to the Architectural Advisory Council for review and also suggest it go to the Zoning Board to see if they can get the square footage they need for the sign, seconded.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated on the question we’re okay as long as Architectural review is okay and it’s up to you and the Zoning Board to get what size sign, with all in favor saying “aye.”



*



*



*




10.
NEW BUSINESS (NONE)
PB 8-09      a.
Referral from the Town Board transmitting the proposed draft zoning amendment regarding the PODS Ordinance for a recommendation from the Planning Board.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated we discussed this at the work session.  I think there needs to be a little bit more clarity as to exactly Mr. Kline brought up the point that you’re not really defining what a PODS is.  There seemed to be some discussion that it may be rental type facilities, so we need to differentiate between what’s owned versus perhaps more temporary rental facilities.
Mr. Ed Vergano stated I’ll bring it back to the Board this week.  

Mr. Steven Kessler asked to the Town Board?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded to the Town Board, yes.

Mr. Robert Foley stated I make a motion that we refer this back, seconded with all in favor saying “aye.”

Mr. Ivan Kline stated I make a motion that we adjourn.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated 10:40 p.m.
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